Summer 1939

Ursinus College Alumni Journal, Summer 1939

Donald L. Helfferich
Ursinus College

Calvin D. Yost
Ursinus College

Stanley Omwake
Ursinus College

Norman E. McClure
Ursinus College

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.ursinus.edu/alumnijournal

Part of the Higher Education Commons, Social History Commons, and the United States History Commons

Click here to let us know how access to this document benefits you.

Recommended Citation
https://digitalcommons.ursinus.edu/alumnijournal/3

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the Ursinusiana Collection at Digital Commons @ Ursinus College. It has been accepted for inclusion in Ursinus College Alumni Journal, 1937-1969 by an authorized administrator of Digital Commons @ Ursinus College. For more information, please contact aprock@ursinus.edu.
JAMES M. ANDERS, M.D., Sc.D., LL.D.
The Portrait Unveiled June 3

SUMMER 1939
Current Comment

Commencement Is Over

But the memory lingers on. While the various happenings are all reported elsewhere in this issue, there are several points which impressed us particularly as being of more than passing interest to Ursinus men and women, and we are accordingly passing them on to those who were not present.

First, was the number who came back. Perhaps, better, not the number but the persons. There was Dr. Markley, from 1876, the oldest alumni present, who still drives his car and preaches at every opportunity; the survivors of 1889, bowed in body, perhaps, but seemingly as young in spirit as they could have been when they graduated; Maurice Hess, who brought his family in from Kansas for his twenty-fifth reunion, and the others who travelled many hundreds of miles to be back at Ursinus once more; and all, in fact, who were on the campus, representatives of all collegiate generations, the successful and those who have had hard sledding, those we see on almost every occasion and those who hadn't been on the Campus since way back when.

Then there was the spirit which so many manifested, of genuine interest in the progress which the College is making, of friendliness toward those whom they encountered, whether old friends or new, of real pleasure at revisiting the scenes and renewing the associations which grow greater in memory with each passing year.

And the class reunions, which were better organized and in consequence, better attended than ever before. Ursinus has lagged behind many institutions in recognizing the need for placing more emphasis and making proper provision for occasions of this sort, but a start was made this year and we hope to do considerably more along this line in the future. An energetic class member or two can do wonders and we wish to pay our respects to those who labored hard, and, we are glad to say, successfully to put their respective reunions across.

Finally, there was the joint action of the Alumni Association and the Alumni Athletic Club, in which the Ursinus Woman's Club is expected to join, in appointing committees to meet together and study the possibilities of expanding the present Old Timers' Day, held each fall, into an honest-to-goodness home-coming week-end, with a program providing something of interest to everyone, which will provide a rallying-point for the alumni comparable to Alumni Day. To be successful, such a plan must be carefully laid and thoroughly worked out, and the idea is that the committee shall consider the matter during the coming year so as to be able to make specific recommendations at the next Commencement for a program to be put on in the fall of 1940. Anyone who has any concrete suggestions along this line should send them to the editors of The Journal, who will pass them on to the proper parties.

This Number

Marks the completion of the second year of The Journal's life. Conceived somewhat spontaneously to meet a need which is now proved to have existed, born into an atmosphere of uncertainty as to how it would be received and how long it would live, it has now cast off its swaddling clothes and is beginning to walk on its own feet. We want to thank the many friends who have welcomed its arrival with words of encouragement, and those who have susta ned it from issue to issue by sending in the bits of news that make it worth while, and we earnestly bespeak their continued interest that this lusty infant may continue to grow "in wisdom and in stature and in favor."

Which Should Remind You

That the expense of printing this magazine is borne by the Alumni Association, which depends entirely for its income upon membership dues. The more members the Association has, the more it can accomplish, but unfortunately, less than half of the living alumni are members in good standing, and the work of the Association is thus seriously hampered. We have said very little about money so far, but this time we are going to suggest to our readers that as many as are able send the small sum of one dollar to Dr. Calvin D. Yost, Jr., the treasurer of the Association, whose address is Collegeville, Pa., and by thus joining this very worthy organization, make Ursinus Alumni activities more worth while.
THE PRESIDENT'S PAGE

Commencement, 1939, has come and gone. The oldest alumnus has told the youngest about the Ursinus of the days when each student tended his own stove and studied by the light of an oil lamp, and the youngest alumnus has told the oldest about the incredible hardships of today. Alumni Day and Commencement this year, it seemed to me, saw an unusual number of alumni on the campus. The reunion of the Class of 1889 and the luncheon of the Class of 1914 in the upper Dining Room were especially noteworthy.

Now that the College is closed, not all of us are estivating. The Faculty has melted into thin air, Dean Kline has gone to renew his youth at the fountains of Adams County, but those of us who remain in Collegeville are not idle: we are concerned mainly with the Class of 1943, with the problem of stretching scholarship funds farther than they can be stretched, and with making the necessary repairs to some twenty buildings and some hundred acres of campus during the intervals when the summer conferences are not in session. The list of conferences is a long one: the Diocesan Conference of the Protestant Episcopal Church, the Asbury Summer School of Ministerial Training of the Methodist Church, the Ursinus Missionary Conference of the Evangelical and Reformed Church, the Tri-State Bible Conference of the Presbyterian Church, the Collegeville Summer Assembly, the Epworth Institute of the Methodist Episcopal Church, the Edward W. Hazen Foundation Conference on Student Counselling, the Schuylkill Branch of the Christian Endeavor. Each of these groups spends from five to ten days at Ursinus College during the most beautiful weeks of the year. In all, some thousand visitors live at Ursinus College during the summer, in addition to the hundreds who come here for a day or two. A great many Ursinus students and the parents of many Ursinus students first saw the College while attending these conferences. Ursinus during the summer is a pleasant and a very busy place.

And now, it may be asked, what does the writer do during the summer months? Although not "exempt from public haunt," he hopefully seeks to find new buildings in trees, benefactions in running brooks, scholarship funds in stones, and encouragement in everything.
The 69th Annual Commencement proved to be one of the best in recent years in a great many respects. The weather was unusually delightful, the scheduled events were well-attended and ran smoothly, and everyone seemed to have a good time. Particularly noteworthy was the number of alumni who returned to the Campus. The class reunions, from 1889 on down to 1934, were as a whole better attended than any of those preceding. Those who were present had an enjoyable day, those who were not have good cause to regret their absence.

Class Day

The customary farewell frolic of the Seniors was held in Bomberger Hall on Friday afternoon, June 2. A three act skit gave a rollicking portrayal of life before college, in college, and after college. A serious note was struck, however, in the induction ceremonies of the newly-formed senior honor society, Cub and Key, which were incorporated into the program. Tradition held sway at the close, when Frederick F. Gladtfelter, president of the class, delivered the mantle oration and William L. Yeomans, class treasurer, formally presented the class tree. Responses were made by Mark D. Alsphach and Charles M. Bowen, the Junior and Sophomore class presidents.

Florence Benjamin '30 Heads Ursinus Woman's Club

Routine business was transacted at the annual meeting of the Ursinus Woman's Club, which followed the Class Day program. The work of the past year was reviewed and progress noted, and plans for the coming year discussed. Florence O. Benjamin '30, of Chester, Pa., one of the Club's most active workers, was unanimously chosen president for the ensuing year. Miss Benjamin has displayed marked abilities of leadership and the Club should move steadily forward. Elizabeth A. Wismer '09 was elected vice-president, and Elmina R. Brant '31 and Lois H. Brownback '21 continue as secretary and treasurer respectively.

Following the business meeting, the Club adjourned to the upper dining-room for the annual dinner. A unique touch was given the occasion by the presence of two bagpipers, Roberta Byron '39 and her sister, Marion Byron '42, who, clad in the full Highland regalia of their clan, piped the members into their places. President McClure, who was the guest of the Club, showed the latest plans for the proposed woman's dormitory group. Entertainment was furnished by a number of the dramatic pupils of Mrs. Eugene B. Michael and by Dorothea A. McCorkle '39, soprano.

"Princess Pat"

Victor Herbert's ever-popular comic opera, produced by the musical organizations of the College under the direction of William F. Philip, Mus. Doc., assistant professor of Music, was presented to large audiences in the Thompson-Gay Gymnasium on both Friday and Saturday nights. The all-student cast presented a commendable performance which fully met the high standard set by the productions of prior years.

Directors Meet

The Board of Directors of the College held its annual meeting on Saturday morning, June 3, in the Faculty Room of the Library.

The reports of the officers and the standing committees were received and approved. No changes were made in the officers and committees of the Board, although Rev. James M. Niblo, D.D., H '38 was appointed chairman of the Committee on Buildings and Grounds, succeeding Ralph E. Miller '04, who remains a member of the Committee. The terms of A. H. Hendricks, LL.D., '88 and Francis J. Gildner, Esq., '00 having expired, they were re-elected for five-year terms, together with Charles B. Heinly, Ped.D., '00, who was nominated for a second term by the Alumni Association.

Miss Camilla B. Stahr, A.B., who had served very acceptably as acting dean of women during the past academic year, was elected to the position of dean of women, and Eugene B. Michael, M.A., '24 was advanced from assistant professor to associate professor of education. The Board accepted the resignations of Joseph R. Reichard, M.A., instructor in German, who accepted an appointment at Oberlin College, and Walter B. Kelly, A.B., '37, assistant in French, who will pursue graduate studies at the University of Pennsylvania. All other instructors holding one-year appointments were re-appointed for the coming year.

Dr. Niblo, chairman of the special committee on women's residence halls, presented a new set of preliminary studies for a group of residence buildings which met with the approval of the Board. The committee was continued and authorized to meet with the Finance Committee to discuss and devise further plans for the prosecution of this project.

Graves Decorated

At 12 noon on Saturday representatives of the Board of Directors, Faculty and Student Body, accompanied by a number of alumni, placed floral tributes on the graves of former Presidents Henry T. Spangler, LL.D. and George L. Omwake, LL.D. in Trinity Cemetery, Collegeville, and on the grave of former President Henry W. Super, LL.D. in St. Luke's Cemetery, Trappe.

Alumni Athletic Club

Officers of the Alumni Athletic Club for the present year were re-elected at a business luncheon at noon on Saturday, June 3, in the recreation hall of the Alumni Memorial Library.

Two appropriations were voted at
the meeting. One hundred dollars was awarded to the Varsity Club Loan Fund, and two hundred dollars was voted toward the permanent surfacing of one of the tennis courts.

The president was empowered to appoint a committee to confer with representatives of the Ursinus Woman's Club and the Alumni Association in expanding the Old Timer's Day program into a week-end.

**Anders Portrait Unveiled**

An unusual event of the Commencement week-end was the unveiling of a portrait of the late James M. Anders, M.D., Sc.D., LL.D., which took place in Bomberger Hall at 2:00 p.m. on Saturday, June 3.

The portrait is the gift of the James M. Anders Pre-Medical Society and a number of Ursinus men who were students under Dr. Anders in the Medico-Chirurgical College. One of America's outstanding physicians for nearly half a century, whose studies and writings won him international renown, Dr. Anders was an active member of the Board of Directors of the College for forty-two years until his death in 1936. In this period, he proved himself one of the most useful as well as one of the most distinguished men ever to sit in the Board. It is highly fitting that his portrait should hang, as it does, in the Science Building, the erection of which was one of his major interests.

Ralph H. Spangler, M.D., '97, of Philadelphia, who presented the portrait on behalf of the donors, extolled Dr. Anders' service to Ursinus, particularly stressing his influence and leadership in the erection of the Science Building and the resultant broadening of the instruction in the sciences. George E. Pfahler, M.D., Sc.D., H '29, representing the Board of Directors, formally accepted the portrait for the College, after which it was unveiled by Frank J. Frosh, Jr., '39, president of the Pre-Medical Society. Both Dr. Spangler and Dr. Pfahler were students under Dr. Anders and later became his close personal and professional associates, and it was through Dr. Anders' challenge that Dr. Pfahler accepted membership on the Board. Dr. McClure presided at the exercises.

In his address of acceptance, after mentioning some of the high points of Dr. Anders' many-sided life, Dr. Pfahler said, in part:

"Some of us have had the great privilege of being rather closely associated with Dr. Anders. As a result, we have naturally been somewhat influenced by his leadership and by the inspiration and confidence which he always gave. He was never a man with whom one would become very intimate. In other words, he was not the type of man who would slap you on the shoulder, nor permit himself to be slapped on the shoulder. He did not exchange intimacies. He was dignified and everyone around him was apt to be dignified as a result. This characteristic however did not lessen his influence. In my opinion, his greatest characteristic was his desire to be of service to his fellow men, of service to his friends, his students and his colleagues. In other words, service seemed to be his motto. This is evidenced by the various details given to you a moment ago by Dr. Spangler. It is also evidenced by the records of his activities to which I have referred. He was accurate in his observations and correct in his writings. It is, therefore, appropriate that his portrait should hang in this Hall of Science where the present students may draw inspiration from his kindly yet serious face, where his life may be taken as an example of concentration, determination and persistence which will lead the present students and many others that are to follow into his footsteps and toward the goal of success."

**Alumni Association**

The annual meeting of the Alumni Association was held in Bomberger Hall at 2:30 p.m. on Saturday, in charge of President Harvey B. Danehower '08. While the attendance left something to be desired, the spirit of the meeting was constructive and progressive.

Routine business, consisting largely of committee reports, occupied most of the time. The principal positive action taken was the authorization given the president to appoint a committee to join with similar groups representing the Alumni Athletic Club and the Ursinus Woman's Club in planning for an enlarged home-coming program in place of the present Old Timers' Day held each fall.

Three school principals were elected to office in the Association as a result of the annual mail balloting. Harold D. Steward, '07, principal of the 15th Avenue Elementary School, Newark, N. J., was elected president, Edgar T. Robinson '14, principal of the Phoenixville, Pa., High School, becomes vice-president, and Dr. Charles B. Heiny '00, principal of the William Penn Senior High School, York, Pa., was returned as alumni representative to the Board of Directors. Dr. Calvin D. Yost, Jr., '30, of the College Faculty, was re-elected secretary-treasurer.

**President's Reception**

From 4 to 5 o'clock, President and Mrs. McClure received informally in the Alumni Memorial Library. A great number of alumni, faculty members, students and guests were present at what has become one of the most delightful events of the week-end.

**Alumni Banquet**

A good crowd attended the Alumni Banquet in the upper dining-room at 5:30 p.m. Harvey B. Danehower '08, president of the Alumni Association, acted as toastmaster. Responses were made by Mrs. Flora Rahn Lentz '89 and Rev. Wallace H. Wotringer, D.D., LL.D., '89, representing the fifty-year class, Paul E. Elicker '14, principal of the Newton, Mass., High School, for the twenty-five year class, Irwin S. Leinbach, M.D., of Reading, Pa., for the ten-year class, and by President McClure and H. D. Steward '07, president-elect of the Alumni Association. Two soprano solos were sung by Harriet C. Adams '39.
Class Reunions

Never in the history of the College have there been so many and such well-attended organized reunions of the so-called five-year classes—those whose length of graduation from Ursinus is measured in multiples of five. Rev. James W. Meminger, D.D., of Lancaster, Pa., who has attended every commencement since 1881, was the sole representative of 1884, and held a general reunion with his many friends.

1889, setting a mark for all coming fifty year classes to shoot at with five out of eight living members present, held a secret session in Room 2, Bomberger, most of Saturday afternoon, which sounded most hilarious at times to those outside. The class also attended the Alumni Banquet in a body as the guests of one of its number, Rev. I. C. Fisher, D.D., of Lebanon, Pa. Those present included Dr. Fisher, Rev. H. A. I. Benner, Quakertown, Pa., Mrs. Flora Rahn Lentz, and Rev. Samuel P. Stauffer, both of Philadelphia, and Rev. Wallace H. Wotrting, D.D., I.D., Nazareth, Pa.

Dr. H. H. Shenk, of Annville, Pa., was determined that 1899's fortieth anniversary should not pass unmarked, and by dint of much correspondence, brought together a dozen classmates who met on the Campus and occupied a special section at the Alumni Banquet.

1914, whose twentieth in 1934 set the pace for modern reunions, celebrated its silver anniversary with a luncheon in the College dining-room. A turn-out worthy of the occasion brought together classmates from Kansas, Iowa, Massachusetts, and intervening points, many of whom had not seen each other since graduation. Prof. Maurice A. Hess, of McPherson College, Kansas, set the distance record for all alumni present as well as for the class, followed by Mrs. Esther Klein Crawford, of Storm Lake, Iowa.

1924 held a celebration which began with luncheon at the Old Mill at Schwenksville and ended with the Alumni Banquet, which brought out an attendance of 41. President Warren F. Betsch, of Yardley, Pa., called upon each member present for an informal account of the experiences of the past fifteen years which proved an interesting and highly enjoyable feature.

Thirty-five members of 1934 got together for an informal buffet luncheon on the Campus, arranged by the officers, William A. O'Donnell, Jr., Esq., of Pottstown, Pa., and Sarah Mary Hampson, of Trappe. Composed mostly of those just getting well started on careers and who find it difficult to get away, the turn-out was very creditable.

Baccalaureate Service

Rev. Harold B. Kerschner, D.D., '16, pastor of the First Presbyterian Church, Poughkeepsie, N. Y., was the preacher at the Baccalaureate Service, held in the Chapel on Sunday morning, June 4.

Stating that a baccalaureate sermon, "should, if it would be true to its purpose, set before us a pattern of living," Dr. Kerschner outlined the essentials for the making of a superior man. First, he must be spiritual, "one who has learned how to transfer his satisfactions from his body to his mind." Secondly, should maintain a balanced and an unembittered outlook on life for "pessimism is the philosophy of vulgar (and) cowardice of the soul." Thirdly, he must have discovered how to be gently serviceable. "It takes a superior person to serve, and he who ministers is truly great."

President McClure read the Lesson, Rev. John Lentz, D.D., college pastor, offered the invocation, and the music was furnished by the College Choir. A concert of sacred music was presented by the Choir on Sunday evening.

The Commencement

The Commencement Exercises were held in Bomberger Hall on Monday morning, June 5, with the usual packed house of parents, alumni, students and friends.

William Sylvano Thunder, of Philadelphia, again gave a half-hour recital on the Clark Memorial Organ, preceding the traditional academic procession which this year progressed in colorful, deliberate dignity across "the soft, greenswarded campus" from the Science Building.

Dr. James M. Landis, dean of the Law School of Harvard University and former chairman of the Federal Securities & Exchange Commission, delivered the address of the day. Taking as his subject, "Economic Changes and the Dynamics of Law," Dean Landis traced the effects that an economic life which refuses to remain static has upon the development of legal concepts which tend to remain static. He pointed out that "it is difficult to understand the strides that law has made except by contrast of one period of another." He drew largely upon the field of social legislation for his illustrations.

In closing, the speaker stated: "The difficulty of articulating for oneself his view of life is exceeded only by the attempt to express in some intelligible fashion the aim that he hopes his society will achieve. The absence of such articulation in one realm makes life a series of incidents; its absence in the other reduces the conception of a just society to an empty phrase."

Diplomas were awarded to 98 graduates, the largest class since 1931. Sixty-five received the Bachelor of Arts degree and thirty-three that of Bachelor of Science.

Five honorary degrees were conferred this year. The recipients were: Doctor of Laws—Norris D. Wright, president of the Norristown-Penn Trust Co., Norristown, Pa.; Doctor of Science—Ovid W. Eshbach, dean of the Institute of Technology and School of Science, Northwestern University, Evanston, Illinois; Doctor of Pedagogy—Jessie Royer Greaves '92, founder and head of the Royer-Greaves School for the Blind, King-
1938 GRADUATES

Bachelor of Arts

Lois E. Geywitz, Trenton, N. J.
Frederick F. Glatfelter, York, Pa.
Ruth E. Grauer, Wood-Ridge, N. J.
Robert E. Gross, Monaca, Pa.
Margaret T. Haas, Medford, N. J.
Raymond E. Harbaugh, McKnightstown, Pa.
F. Ruth Heinly, Royersford, Pa.
Dorothy N. Hutt, Upper Darby, Pa.
Albert G. Kaplan, Egg Harbor City, N. J.
Marion K. Kershner, Norristown, Pa.
John W. Kinsella, Haddonfield, N. J.
Calvin C. Klebe, East Greenville, Pa.
Mary louise Long, Reading, Pa.
Dorothea A. McCorkle, Coatesville, Pa.

Florence D. Mennis, Vineland, N. J.
Aaron R. Miller, Pine Grove, Pa.
I. Elizabeth Moore, Pottstown, Pa.
Gertrude F. Mullen, Gulp Mills, Pa.
Mildred M. Sattazahn, Pine Grove, Pa.
Elizabeth M. Seidel, Lehighton, Pa.
Ruth Shoemaker, Hempstead, N. Y.
Helen L. Skilling, Swarthmore, Pa.
Alma F. Stiteler, Chester, Pa.
Mary Helen Stoutd, Leesport, Pa.
W. Elliott Towsey, Jr., Port Royal, Pa.
Roger L. Wardlow, Cheltenham, Pa.
Adam G. Warnen, Pottstown, Pa.
William L. Yeomans, W. Collingswood, N. J.
A. Geraldine Yerger, Lansdale, Pa.

Bachelor of Science

Bachelor of Science Cum Laude


Bachelor of Science Cum Laude

Lillian M. Bedner, Woodbridge, N. J.
Franklin Earnest III, Collingswood, N. J.
Howard B. Smith, Glenside, Pa.

Bachelor of Science

Harriet C. Adams, Wenonah, N. J.
Anthony C. Calabrese, Norristown, Pa.
Margaret E. Claffin, Scarsdale, N. Y.
Morris B. Clark, Jr., Haddonfield, N. J.
Edna S. Cope, Springfield, Pa.
Evelyn S. Cornish, Collegeville, Pa.
Gladys D. Daugherty, Cape May C., N. J.
Ruth A. Detwiler, Trappe, Pa.
Marycatherine Diefenderfer, Slaton ton, Pa.
William C. Ellenbogen, Danville, Pa.
Raymond V. Gurzynski, Catasauqua, Pa.
W. Howard Gushard, Prospect Park, Pa.
Ivan W. Hess, Royersford, Pa.
E. Clifford Lauenslager, Dublin, Pa.
George M. Meklos, Phoenixville, Pa.
Marjorie A. Mortimer, Allentown, Pa.
Virginia M. Nagel, Boyertown, Pa.
E. Louise Rothermel, Reading, Pa.
James Russo, Norristown, Pa.
Margaret V. Svit, Ocean City, N. J.
Fred G. Todt, Audubon, N. J.
Pauline N. Walters, Trappe, Pa.

Commencement Honors

Valedictory: Bernice K. Grubb
Salutatory: Mabel B. Ditter

Departmental Honors

Biology: H. Eugene Hile, Jr.
Chemistry: William C. Ellenbogen
French: Bernice K. Grubb

History: Paul P. Haas

Mathematics: Allen S. Dunn, Jr.
Philosophy: Samuel S. Laucks, Jr.
Political Science: Mabel B. Ditter

Religion: William E. Wimer
SPRING SPORTS

The weather man played the heavy role in the spring sports production this year. Cold weather and heavy rains which continued into May, not only caused the cancellation of many contests but wreaked havoc with team practices, the effects of which were felt by all sports.

Baseball
Jing Johnson’s ball club finished with four games won, four lost and four rained out, plus a contest with Villanova that ended with a dispute over an umpire’s interpretation of a ground rule. Both sides declared the arbiter in the wrong but the game was forfeited to Villanova when the umpire gave one minute to resume play on a field crowded by spectators.

The team hit heavily, compiling an average of .311 with 98 hits out of 315 times at bat. Twelve were doubles, six were triples and two were home runs. Shortstop Hal Moyer led the field with a .450 average, and six regular players hit .300 or better.

Summary:

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Team</th>
<th>U</th>
<th>0</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>4 Temple</td>
<td>0</td>
<td>12</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>3 Bucknell</td>
<td>8</td>
<td>8</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>9 Dickinson</td>
<td>0</td>
<td>0</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>12 Swarthmore</td>
<td>4</td>
<td>4</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>7 *Drexel</td>
<td>8</td>
<td>8</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>17 *Muhlenberg</td>
<td>7</td>
<td>7</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>5 *Lebanon Valley</td>
<td>0</td>
<td>0</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>6 * Juniata (12 innings)</td>
<td>7</td>
<td>7</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

(Villanova game forfeited at end of 6th inning when score was 4 to 2 in favor of Ursinus)

63 Won 4, Lost 4, Forfeited 1
*League games.

Track

The track team experienced one of its poorest seasons, finishing second in a triangular meet with Gettysburg and Drexel, and losing dual meets to F. & M., St. Joseph’s, and Albright. There was a lack of enough experienced men to present a team properly balanced among the various events, and bad weather cut down the time available for training the rather promising green material that turned out. Captain Eshbach was again the outstanding individual performer, although his versatility resulted in his spreading himself over too many different events to the impairment somewhat of his effectiveness in his specialty, the broad jump. Nevertheless, he was again undefeated in dual meet competition.

Women’s Tennis

The girls turned out the only winning spring team, taking five court contests out of six. The sixth, which was played at Swarthmore, seemed in the bag, when rain descended as the doubles were starting, and the match was moved to the Garnet’s new field house. Unused to playing indoors, the Ursinus girls were hampered by close clearances and had difficulty in gauging shots, with the result that they were nosed out 3-2.

Summary:

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Team</th>
<th>U</th>
<th>0</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>5 Rosemont</td>
<td>0</td>
<td>0</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>4 Temple</td>
<td>1</td>
<td>1</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>4 Beaver</td>
<td>1</td>
<td>1</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2 Swarthmore</td>
<td>3</td>
<td>3</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>5 Drexel</td>
<td>0</td>
<td>0</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>5 Chestnut Hill</td>
<td>0</td>
<td>0</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

25 Won 5, Lost 1.

Men’s Tennis

This sport was ruined beyond repair by the spring rains. Only three matches were able to be played, all of which were lost, and in between, the courts were not dry long enough to provide anything like adequate practice for a team of young and more or less inexperienced players who badly needed work.

Summary:

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Team</th>
<th>U</th>
<th>0</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>0 F. &amp; M.</td>
<td>9</td>
<td>9</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>0 Muhlenberg</td>
<td>9</td>
<td>9</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>0 Drexel</td>
<td>9</td>
<td>9</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Score</th>
<th>27</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>Won 0, Lost 3.</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

Other Sports

The cricketers continued to play among themselves, but no outside matches were held this year. Interest kept up, the sport is no longer a curiosity at Ursinus, and as it seems to be experiencing a revival in the United States, a full schedule of matches with nearby clubs does not seem too improbable in the near future.

The women organized a golf team, which played two matches informally with similar teams from Pennsylvania and Swarthmore, losing both by close scores.

Archery was one of the sports held back by the weather. “Smo” Hampson’s feminine William Tells did stage a couple of contests with nearby colleges, but could not hit the bullseye often enough to win.

Intramurals

Softball, the game that conquered a nation, was king of the spring—when it wasn’t raining—and Curtis was king of the Interdorm League, unbeaten and untied. Brodbeck won the all-around championship trophy, winning the touch football and wrestling crowns, and finishing runner-up in basketball and wrestling. Other sport champions were Day Study in basketball and Freeland in boxing.
WOMAN'S DORMITORY GROUP PLANNED

The Journal takes great pleasure in presenting to its readers a reproduction of one of the preliminary studies for the proposed group of residences for women, which we all hope will become a reality before many more issues appear.

While the group has the appearance of a single building, it consists in reality of six adjoining but independent units, each with its own entrance, living-room, stairways, and other facilities, and separated from those adjoining by fire walls which may be pierced by doorways to make the buildings intercommunicating.

The group is composed of a central building, which will contain quarters for the dean of women, a large lounge with kitchen adjoining, which may be used for meetings, and accommodations for thirty girls. This is flanked by two units of forty-five and thirty-two students capacity respectively. To the left, facing the front of the group, is a wing of one unit, extending at right angles to the central group, and to the right, at an angle of ten degrees, is another wing, of two units. Provision is made for apartments for preceptors in each building. The total capacity of the entire group is 215 students.

The buildings are all three stories in height. Both single and double rooms are provided, and, by means of connecting doors, it is possible to convert a number into suites. There are ample toilet and bathing facilities, and extra storage and closet space on each floor.

It is intended to locate the group at the east end of the campus, on the ground lying, roughly, between the hockey field and the College barn, which will, of course, be removed. This is the site chosen by Dr. Omwake over twenty years ago, and no more satisfactory location is available. The buildings will probably be constructed of stone approximating in appearance that used in the Library and the buildings erected since that time.

The design of the group is such that each unit may be erected independently and thus a start may be made with one or more units, the rest being added as funds become available. This plan is much superior to the one originally proposed, which called for the erection of one large building, costing about the same as the entire new group, which would have had to be put up at one time.

Little can be said, at this writing, as to when construction is likely to be started. By action of the Board, work may not be commenced on any unit until the funds for its erection are in hand. The average cost has been estimated at about $30,000. The late Dr. J. M. S. Isenberg secured several thousand dollars before his death, which has been invested and is available for the purpose. A graduate of the College and his wife, who prefer to remain anonymous for the present, have contributed part of the cost of one unit and indicated an intention of making further gifts toward the project. The members of the Board of Directors have assumed the responsibility of providing for a third unit at such time as sufficient money to erect the first two is available, and President McClure and Vice-President Helfferich are working hard to interest prospective donors. The situation today, then, is that one unit seems reasonably within sight, while if another is provided for, three will be built, but no one can say positively when this will take place.
Deaths

Rev. Elias Seyler Noll '93 died on Dec. 20, 1938, aged 72. Born in near Reading, Pa., March 5, 1866. Mr. Noll was graduated from Ursinus in 1893 and from the School of Theology in 1895, in which year he was ordained as pastor of the Reformed Church at Overton, Pa., serving until 1900, when he commenced a three-year pastorate at Fayette, N. Y. From 1903 to 1909, he served the church at New Berlin, Pa., resigning to become superintendent of the Clarion, Pa., State Normal School. He returned to the ministry in 1913 as pastor of the Hickory Bottom charge, and in 1921 became pastor of the Mahanoy charge, near Herndon, Pa., where he served until his death. His wife and a son, Rev. Earnest E. Noll ex '34, survive.

Rev. Edgar Ritter Appenzeller '00 died in Philadelphia on Easter Sunday, April 9. He was born in Philadelphia in 1878, and was educated in the schools of that city, in Ursinus College and in its School of Theology, graduating from the latter in 1903. The following year was spent as assistant pastor of the Fourth Reformed Church, Dayton, Ohio, and in 1904 he was installed in the pastorate of St. John's Church, Chambersburg, Pa., serving for six years. In 1910, he became the minister of the historic First Church, one of the oldest congregations in the denomination and in the city. First Church was then situated in a declining neighborhood and Mr. Appenzeller was faced with the problem of relocation, which he solved successfully through the removal of the congregation to West Philadelphia, where a new church building was erected. The strain broke his health, however, and he was forced to retire from the ministry in 1917. During his pastorate at First Church, he was nominated for the Kaub Professorship in Central Theological Seminary but declined the call, preferring the active ministry. Upon recovering his health, he entered the United States Internal Revenue Service, in which he rose to high rank, being chief deputy collector at Philadelphia when taken by his last illness. He was buried at Dayton, Ohio, on April 11. Two daughters survive.

Samuel K. Brecht, Litt.D., H '24, died at his home in Manoa, Pa., on April 20, after a prolonged illness, in his seventieth year. He was a graduate of Haverford College and the University of Pennsylvania, and had taught in the Philadelphia schools for over 33 years, retiring in 1938 on account of his health. A prominent member of the Schwenkfelder church, his work as editor of the Corpus Schwenkfeldianorum, the collected writings of Caspar von Schwenkfeld and his followers, won him high standing in scholarly circles and led the College to confer upon him the honorary degree of Doctor of Letters in 1924. He is survived by his wife and two sons.

Harry Bartman, Esq., '17, died at his home in Pottstown, Pa., on May 12, after an illness of over a year. Born in Collegeville, Jan. 28, 1895, he was graduated from Ursinus in 1917 and taught at the Hamburg, N. J., High School for a few months until he entered the United States Army. Upon his discharge from the army at the end of the war, he taught in the Woodbury, N. J., High School for a year and then entered the University of Pennsylvania Law School, being graduated in 1923. The year following he opened law offices in Pottstown, Pa., where he established an extensive practice. He was a director of the National Iron Bank of Pottstown, and a member of the county and state bar associations and of the Masonic order. On July 12, 1924, he was married to Naomi C. Detwiler '20, who, with three children, a sister, Mary Bartman Wetzel '13, and a brother, Comdr. Russell C. Bartman, U. S. N., '18, survive.

Henry Kulp Ancona '15, died suddenly in Pottstown, Pa., on June 23, after having been seized with a heart attack in the Van Buskirk and Bro. store, of which he was proprietor. He was born in Pottstown, March 8, 1894. Following his graduation from Ursinus in 1915, he took a position as a statistician for the Johns-Manville Co., later becoming a metallurgist with the North American Motors Co. and the U. S. Axle Co. In 1923, he entered the hardware business of Van Buskirk & Bro., one of Pottstown's old, established business houses, becoming a member of the firm in 1927 and sole proprietor in 1935. He was a director of the Pottstown Ice & Cold Storage Co., and had a number of other important business interests. An active worker in Christ Protestant Episcopal Church, he served as organist and choirmaster for 25 years and was accounting warden at the time of his death. Funeral services were conducted on June 27 by Rev. Albert Holt ex '15, rector of the church. He is survived by his wife and twin daughters.

Rev. Perry H. Baumann ex '15, died in Toledo, Ohio, on June 26, after a brief illness. Born in Reading, Pa., May 15, 1889, he entered Ursinus with the Class of 1915, but left college to enter the Mission House Theological Seminary, from which he was graduated in 1917. He was then ordained as pastor of the Reformed Church at Clay City, Indiana, where he served five years, and in 1923, became pastor at Bellaire, Ohio. In 1926, he was called to Memorial Church, Toledo. This was a struggling, badly run-down mission, but Mr. Baumann took firm hold, and by steady, patient effort, built the congregation up to a position of strength. Because of his ability and experience, he was frequently called into consultation on problems confronting mission churches. His wife and five children survive.

Marriages

April 8—William F. Schussler and Mary A. Smith '30, in St. John's
Lutheran Church, Reading, Pa. Living at 902 Penn Ave., Wyomissing, Pa. The groom is connected with the Reading Foundry Co.


April 29—James Monroe Wharton ’34, Aviation Cadet, U. S. N., and Mildred Holloway, of East Stroudsburg, Pa., at Norfolk, Va. Living at Coronado, Calif., where the groom is on duty with Squadron VP-9, Navy Air Service.

June 3—Robert A. Murray ’37 and Evelyn Jefferis, of Norberth, Pa., in the Washington Memorial Chapel, Valley Forge, Pa.

June 15—Alfred C. Alspach ’33 and Mary Frances Embree, in St. Louis, Mo. Living in Lancaster, Pa., where the groom, a member of the State Legislature, is in the practice of law.

June 17—William Schuyler Pettit, instructor in Chemistry in the College, and Marion Burgstresser, at the home of the bride’s parents, Mr. and Mrs. A. K. Burgstresser, of Jeffersonville, Pa., by Rev. Whorten A. Klme, Litt. D., dean of the College. Living at 816 Main St., Collegeville.

R. Wayne Johnson and Isabel J. Ellis ’29, at the home of the bride in Frick’s Lock, Pa.

June 21—Jere J. Lowney, Jr., and Regina S. Romberger ’37, in Trinity Lutheran Church, Norristown, Pa. Living in Philadelphia, where the groom is connected with the Osborne Advertising Co.

June 22—Albert P. Lorz and Thelma R. Wood ’21, at Oyster Bay, N. Y. Mrs. Lorz was for several years on the research staff of the Biology Department of Brown University, from which she received her Ph.D. last year. The groom is a member of the faculty of Seton Hall College, East Orange, N. J.


Winfred Bean ex ’39 and Emma P. Kirkpatrick ’37, in Calvary Protestant Episcopal Church, Conshohocken, Pa. Howard A. Yost and Violet M. Wintersteen ’34, of Port Carbon, Pa. June 26—Robert E. Walley and Helen L. Smith ’37, in the rectorcy of St. Joseph’s Roman Catholic Church, Spring City, Pa. Living in Spring City. The groom is an accountant in the State Treasurer’s Department in Harrisburg.

July 8—Henry E. Rollins, Jr., and Florence E. Eisenberg ’37, in the Methodist Episcopal Church, Conshohocken, Pa. Living at 1013 Fayette St., Conshohocken. The groom is a textile chemist with the Sandoz Chemical Works, Philadelphia.

July 22—Charles J. Kraft, M.D., ’33 and Helen Ruth Fields, at Tunkhannock, Pa. Living in Meshoppen, Pa., where Dr. Kraft is in practice.

Degrees


Yale University: LL.B.—E. Kermit Harbaugh ’36.

George Washington University: M.A.—Flora V. Cooke ’33.


Union Theological Seminary: B.D.—Charles Francis Ehly ’36.


Drew University: B.D.—H. Allen Cooper ’35.

Ursinus Alumni Head

Three New Synods

Under the constitution of the new Evangelical and Reformed Church, provision was made to replace the several synods and classes of the Reformed Church in the United States and the districts of the Evangelical Synod of North America with new synods, smaller than the old Reformed synods but larger than the classes and most of the districts. The plan of organization, as finally adopted, was scheduled to go into effect this year, and accordingly, the accredited representatives of the new synods have been holding organization meetings over the past two or three months.

Of the new synods organized to date, three have elected graduates of Ursinus to the presidency, which covers a longer term and contains a much greater measure of authority than did that office in the old synods.

Lehigh Synod, whose bounds are those of the former Lehigh Classis, met on May 26 and elected Rev. William O. Wolfford ’21, pastor of the Fogelsville, Pa., charge, as its president. Sixty-eight congregations, with a total membership of 23,000, are included in the synod. Mr. Wolfford is a graduate of the Theological Seminary at Lancaster, Pa., and has spent his entire ministry within the bounds of the synod he now heads, having served churches at Palmerton and Alburtis before assuming his present charge.

Rev. W. Sherman Kerschner, D.D., ’09, pastor of Heidelberg Church, Philadelphia, since 1931, was elected president of the Philadelphia Synod.
on May 26. This synod includes 63 congregations, with membership of over 23,000, within thirty miles of Philadelphia. Dr. Kerschner was graduated from Central Seminary in 1912 and served churches in Freeport, Ill., and Pittsburgh, Pa., before becoming pastor of Heidelberg Church, York, Pa., where he ministered for sixteen years before going to Philadelphia. He has served on various church boards and is now secretary of the special commission to prepare a new hymnal for the denomination, which is nearly ready for the press. Dr. Kerschner, who is married to his classmate, Elizabeth K. Long, is a brother to this year's baccalaureate preacher, Rev. Harold B. Kerschner, D.D., '16, Poughkeepsie, N. Y.

The new Reading Synod, with a membership of 33,000 in 107 congregations in Berks and Schuylkill counties, the second largest in the Church, was organized at Reading, Pa., on June 17, and elected Rev. Arthur C. Thompson, D.D., '96, as its president. Dr. Thompson was graduated from the Ursinus School of Theology in 1899 and became pastor at Saxton, Pa. He later served at Trinity Church, Norristown, Pa., and Grace Church, Shippensburg, Pa. In 1913, he was called to be minister of Trinity Church, Tamaqua, Pa., where he has served with distinction for over a quarter of a century. Dr. Thompson is a son of Rev. A. R. Thompson ex '78, the father of Pauline Thompson '29 and Albert S. Thompson '31, and brother to L. R. Thompson, M.D., '00, Eva M. Thompson '08, and Albert R. Thompson '10.

At the same meeting, Rev. O. R. Frantz '93, who retired as pastor of the Minersville, Pa., church last year, was elected secretary of the Synod.

Gingrich '16 and Will '18 Receive Navy Promotions

On July 11, the President of the United States sent to the Senate the nominations for promotion to the next higher grade of Herman F. Gingrich '16 and Charles R. Will '18. Will, a line officer, was promoted from lieutenant-commander to commander; Gingrich, an officer in the Supply Corps, was promoted from paymaster to pay inspector with rank of commander. Both new ranks date from July 1. Comdr. Gingrich has been on duty at the Bureau of Supplies and Accounts in Washington for some time. Comdr. Will was recently made executive officer of the Naval Powder Factory, Indianhead, Md. Since promotion in the Navy is based upon a system of rigorous selection, where only the fit survive, both men are to be congratulated, the more so since they entered the service direct from Ursinus without the advantage of the Naval Academy course.

Six Ursinus men are now serving in the Navy, not bad for an inland college. Besides the two named, they are, Comdr. R. C. Bartman '18, now on the heavy cruiser Wichita, and Aviation Cadets Aram Y. Parunak '33, James M. Wharton '34, and Norris A. Johnson '36, who are with various units of the Navy Air Service.

1887

The Journal congratulates Rev. and Mrs. Gideon P. Fisher, of Warren, Ohio, who celebrated their golden wedding anniversary on June 25. Mr. Fisher retired in 1934 after a ministry of 45 years, in the course of which he served churches in New Hanover, Pa., Somerset, Ohio, Hallam, Pa., Marion, Pa., Warren, Ohio, Culver, Ind., Braddock, Pa., and Sharpsville, Pa.

The fiftieth anniversary of the ordination of Rev. Charles E. Wehler, D.D., was observed on June 30 by a special service in the Presbyterian Church of Frederick, Md., of which Dr. Wehler is pastor emeritus. Greetings were brought by representatives of the congregation and of the churches of the town, and an anniversary gift was presented to Dr. Wehler.

Dr. Wehler first served the historic Boehm's Reformed Church, Blue Bell, Pa., and subsequently was pastor at Manheim, Pa., Trinity Church, Dayton, Ohio, and Newton, N. C. While at Newton, he also acted as professor of History in Catawba College and was acting president of the College for a year. In 1911, he became vice-president of Hood College, Frederick, Md., serving until 1923, when he became pastor of Faith Reformed Church, Baltimore, Md. He returned to Frederick as pastor of the Presbyterian Church in 1927, becoming pastor emeritus in 1937.

1890

Rev. Edward S. Bromer, D.D., retired as professor of Practical Theology in the Theological Seminary of the Reformed Church, Lancaster, Pa., at the close of the academic year, and is now living on Hess Ave., R. D. 3, Lancaster. Dr. Bromer was graduated from the Divinity School of Yale University in 1893, and after a year of further study at Yale, became pastor of the Reformed Church at Orwigsburg, Pa. In 1898, he became pastor of Tabor Church, Lebanon, Pa., and served as a professor in the Ursinus School of Theology from 1906 to 1907, when he was called to First Church, Greensburg, Pa. Following a notable pastorate at Greensburg, he was elected to the professorship in the Theological Seminary in 1920. When the Forward Movement of the denomination was launched in 1919, Dr. Bromer became the secretary of its Department of Spiritual Resources, and he has been a member of many boards and commissions of the Church.

1891

Friends of Rev. Frank H. Fisher, D.D., of Philadelphia, will regret to learn of the death of Mrs. Fisher on June 1. Dr. Fisher retired from the pastorate of Calvary Reformed Church, Philadelphia, in 1934, after a ministry of 32 years.

1898

Rev. A. R. Kepler, D.D., general secretary of the Church of Christ in China, paid a flying visit to the Campus on May 16. Dr. Kepler, who was on an extended speaking tour in the
interest of the Chinese missions, planned to return to China in the early summer by way of England, where he had a number of engagements. In his 38 years of service in the mission field, he has circled the globe several times, covered innumerable miles in China alone, and easily qualifies as Ursinus' most-travelled alumnus.

1906

J. Linwood Eisenberg, Ph.D., LL.D., for the past five years professor of psychology and chairman of the Department of Education in the State Teachers College at Shippenburg, Pa., retired on May 31 after 44 years in the teaching profession. Named pastor of the Shippenburg Church of the Brethren last fall, he will devote his entire time to the pastorate.

Dr. Eisenberg started his educational career as a teacher in the Royersford, Pa., schools, where he spent seventeen years, becoming supervising principal. While at Royersford, he took work at Ursinus, graduating with the Class of 1906, and later doing graduate work at the University of Pennsylvania, from which he received his doctorate in 1913. He joined the faculty of the West Chester State Normal School in 1912, resigning in 1914 to become superintendent of the West Chester school system. He was elected principal of the Slippery Rock State Normal School in 1917. During his administration, the institution was enlarged into a teachers college, of which he was made president, serving until 1934, when he went to Shippenburg.

1907

The Journal extends sympathy to Rev. Charles H. Brown, of Green Lane, Pa., whose wife passed away on May 10. Mr. Brown is pastor of a charge composed of Frieden's Church, Sunnynetown, Old Goshenhoppen, Woxall, and Keeler's Church, Obelisk.

1915

Harvey R. Vanderslice, Ped.D., has been elected superintendent of schools at Coatesville, Pa., a post he previously held from 1918 to 1926. Before his first term at Coatesville, he served as principal at Collegeville and Boyertown, Pa. In 1926, he became superintendent at Aliquippa, Pa., where he remained until 1937, when he became connected with the Lyons and Carman Book Co. Dr. Vanderslice has been active in state and national educational bodies and has contributed widely to professional journals.

1916

The twentieth anniversary of the ordination of Rev. Walter R. Gobrecht, S.T.D., was observed on May 28 by special services in Grace Reformed Church, Columbiana, Ohio, of which Dr. Gobrecht is pastor. Upon his graduation from Central Seminary in 1919, Dr. Gobrecht became pastor of St. Paul's Church, Greenville, Ohio, where he remained for a year. In 1920, he commenced a seventeen-year pastorate in St. Paul's Church, Chambersburg, which he left last year to take up his work at Columbiana. He received the degree of Doctor of Sacred Theology from the Seminary of the Methodist Protestant Church at Westminster, Md., in 1934, and is the author of a book of sermons entitled The Gospel Message in Great Poems.

1917

Rev. John H. A. Bomberger II sailed on July 13 for Amsterdam, where he will attend the World Conference of Christian Youth as a representative of the Protestant Episcopal Church. Mr. Bomberger has been the rector of St. Matthew's Church, Wheeling, W. Va., one of the largest parishes in the diocese of West Virginia, since 1927.

1921

Donald L. Hefferich, vice-president of the College, has been elected chairman of the board and vice-president of the Upper Darby, Pa., National Bank, which has experienced an exceptional growth in recent years, until it is now one of the leading financial institutions of Delaware County. He had been a director in the bank for some years. His responsibilities at the bank are largely policy-making and supervisory in nature, and do not conflict with his duties at the College.

1922

Rev. A. Randal Zendt, who had been engaged in Y. M. C. A. work in New York and Jersey City for several years, has become pastor of Hope Reformed Church, Union City, N. J. He and Mrs. Zendt (Helen M. Reimer) are living in the parsonage at 819 Fifteenth St., Union City.

1926

Mr. and Mrs. Francis C. Evans (Dorothy E. Hamilton), of 1762 Wayne Ave., Upper Darby, Pa., are the parents of a seven pound son, James Lincoln, born June 27.

George W. R. Kirkpatrick was elected principal of the new million-dollar Lower Merion Junior High School at Bala-Cynwyd, Pa. He assumed his new post July 1. "Kirk" had been supervising principal of the Marcus Hook, Pa., schools for two years, and previously was principal of the Marcus Hook Junior High School. He had also served as supervising principal at Folcroft, Pa. In 1932, he received his M.A. from the University of Pennsylvania. He has been active in educational circles in Delaware County and is a well-known sports official.

Rev. Morris D. Slifer, S.T.D., pastor of the Pennsburg, Pa., Reformed Church for the past ten years, has been elected pastor of St. Stephen's Church, Reading, Pa., one of the largest congregations in the city. He is expected to assume charge of the church in the fall. Dr. Slifer is a graduate of the Theological Seminary of the Reformed Church, and in June received the degree of Doctor of Sacred Theology from the Philadelphia Divinity School.

Rev. Edward W. Ulrich on July 1 became pastor of St. Paul's Evangelical and Reformed Church, Selins-
grove, Pa. Mr. Ullrich was graduated from the Theological Seminary at Lancaster, Pa., in 1929 and was elected pastor of Jacob's Church, Weissport, Pa., serving until 1931, when he went to First Church, Royersford, Pa. He may be addressed at 7 East Mill St., Seltzengrove.

1927

Word has been received of the recent marriage of Ruth K. Kuder, librarian in Boys' High School, Lancaster, Pa., since 1931, to Merrill C. Yost, chemistry teacher in the same school.

1929

Rev. and Mrs. Merritt J. Jeffers (Ruth E. Moyer '28) announce the birth of a son, Peter Moyer, on April 16 in the Butler Memorial Hospital. The Jeffers family are living at 320 E. Main St., Evans City, Pa., where "Jeff" is pastor of the Reformed Church.

Mr. and Mrs. James C. Poff (Geraldine Ohl '30) are now living at 403 E. Wopsononock Ave., Altoona, where Jim is district manager for the Bell Telephone Co.

1930

Rev. George E. Dillinger, pastor of Memorial Reformed Church, Winston-Salem, N. C., since 1937, was installed as pastor of First Church, Burlington, N. C., on June 4. Before going to Winston-Salem, he had served the Hickory Bottom charge, Loysburg, Pa., from the time of his graduation from Central Seminary in 1933.

A. Horace Werner is a representative of the Sun Life Assurance Co. of Canada, with offices at 814 Industrial Trust Bldg., Wilmington, Del.

1931

George H. Allen II is assistant manager of the beef division of the Girard Ave. branch of Swift & Co. in Philadelphia.

Clinton C. Felton recently was made manager of the J. G. McCrory store in Bellefonte, Pa., and reports an encouraging growth since taking charge. He had previously been assistant manager of the Clearfield, Pa., store.

1933

J. Philip Citta, M.D., was married on July 1, 1933, to Hazel Greenly, of Lincoln, Del. Phil, who completed his internship in Jefferson Hospital, Philadelphia, is now surgical resident in Kent General Hospital, Dover, Del.

Joseph H. Diehl, who had been teaching in the Towamencin Junior High School, Kulpsville, Pa., since 1934, has been elected to a position in Mathematics in the Souderton, Pa., High School.

Harold E. Fisher is assistant manager of the Trenton, N. J., office of Dun & Bradstreet, Inc.

Anthony V. Ziecardi, M.D., has commenced the general practice of medicine, with offices in the Evans Bldg., Maple Shade, N. J.

1934

Robert E. Bennett, M.D., who interned at Cooper Hospital, Camden, N. J., during the past year, is now medical resident in the Trenton, N. J., State Hospital.

Mr. and Mrs. C. Everett Danehower, of Collindale, Pa., are the parents of a son, Harvey Everett, born in Fitzgerald-Mercy Hospital, May 26.

Mrs. Albert Clark Hobbie (Sara E. Kitchen) may be addressed at 257 W. Main St., Moorstown, N. J.

Mr. and Mrs. James M. Russo are the parents of a daughter, born May 12. Jim is completing his course in the Philadelphia College of Osteopathy.

Lawrence V. Shear, formerly with the Thermoid Company in Charlotte, N. C., is back North again, doing sales survey work for the Union Rubber and Asbestos Co., Trenton, N. J.

Rev. Norman W. Shollenberger, pastor of the Reformed Church at Scottsdale since 1937, was installed as pastor of the church at Willow Street, near Lancaster, Pa., on May 28, by Rev. T. A. Alspach, D.D., '07 and Rev. Jerome A. Wenner '33.

Irving E. Sutin was married on Nov. 25, 1937, and may be addressed at 315 S. Allen St., Albany, N. Y., where he is employed by the State of New York.

John G. Yergat, formerly district representative for the Pennsylvania Power & Light Co. in Catasauqua, Pa., is now a salesman in the Allentown, Pa., branch of the Atlantic Refining Co.

1935

Announcement has been made of the marriage last August of Camille R. Kurtz, M.D., and Eleanor Venzke, of Pottstown, Pa. Dr. and Mrs. Kurtz are living at the Geltmont Apts., 1835 Third St., N. E., Washington, D. C., where Dr. Kurtz is interning in Sibley Memorial Hospital.

Thomas R. Price has been elected to a position in the high school at Pleasantville, N. J.

Walter S. Price, M.D., and Nila Thornburgh, of Richmond, Ind., were married in Palmyra, N. J., Sept. 10, 1938. Dr. Price has commenced an internship in Grant Hospital, Columbus, Ohio.

Margaret L. Shively is now employed in the personnel department of John Wanamaker, Philadelphia, and is taking graduate work in psychology in the University of Pennsylvania.

Rev. William H. Tempest, who was graduated from the Eden Theological Seminary in June, has accepted a call to the Ringtown, Pa., charge of the Evangelical and Reformed Church.

1936

Rev. George B. Carvell, pastor of the Hatfield Evangelical Congregational Church since 1936, was transferred to Trinity Church, Pottstown, Pa., at the annual conference of the denomination.

Albert R. Gaumer, coach at the Salem, N. J., High School for the past two years, has been named head coach of basketball in the new Lower Camden County Regional High School.
at Lindenwold, N. J., which will open in September.

Thomas P. Glassmoyer, who was graduated from the University of Pennsylvania Law School in June, made almost a clean sweep of the prizes awarded at the annual commencement having been announced as winner of the Anram, Davis, McCall, McKeel, and Morris Prizes and a set of books from the American Jurisprudence Series, for excellence in various departments of study. During the past year, he served as editor-in-chief of the University of Pennsylvania Law Review.

E. Kermit Harbaugh received his Bachelor of Laws degree from Yale University on June 21. He will become associated with the law firm of Sage, Gray, Todd & Simms, 49 Wall St., New York City, in September.

W. Gordon Hannaway was graduated from the Hartford Theological Seminary and has accepted an appointment as missionary to Syria.

Donald H. Kocher has joined the sales staff of the Scott Paper Co., Chester, Pa.

Paul R. Shelly, who was graduated from Hartford Theological Seminary on May 24, has been awarded the William Thompson Fellowship, offering the opportunity for two years of graduate study.

Arnold F. Wynne, who had been teaching in the Upper Mt. Bethel Township schools, has been elected to teach English in the Bangor, Pa., High School.

1937

Richard Dunn has been appointed junior assistant statistician in the Department of Public Assistance, Harrisburg, Pa.

William J. Epprecht, Jr., who taught in the Mont Clare, Pa., school last year, has been elected to teach Mathematics and coach in the Towamencin Junior High School, Kulpsville, Pa.

Louis A. Krug has been elected to teach social studies in the new Collegeville-Trappe Senior High School. Lou has been doing graduate work in Clark University since graduation.

E. Eugene Shelley has been awarded a graduate scholarship in political science in the University of Pennsylvania for the coming year. In addition to his work at Penn, Shelley is employed as junior claim investigator in the Philadelphia office of the State Department of Public Assistance.

Jean L. Ulsh has been elected to teach French and English in the Yeardon, Pa., High School.

Dorothy A. Witmer, a teacher in the Malverne, N. Y., High School, was one of the representatives of the Evangelical and Reformed Church at the World Conference of Christian Youth in Amsterdam.

Flora E. Youngken is now employed in the foreign annals department of the Harvard University Library. She had previously been secretary to the superintendent of nurses in the Boston City Hospital.

1938

Lester C. Brown is a salesman with the American Gas Service Co., covering suburban Philadelphia.

John M. Knoll has been elected teacher of English and coach of football in the Quakertown, Pa., High School.

Grace E. Nachod has been awarded a full scholarship for four years at the Woman's Medical College. The scholarship, which was offered for the first time, was awarded on a competitive basis, taking in the scholastic standing and recommendations of the applicants, and was very keenly contested.

Leo W. Padden is with the Massachusetts Bonding & Insurance Co., at 1708 Race St., Philadelphia.

Ruth Jane Roth has a position with the Bell Telephone Co. in Reading, Pa.

Charles C. Wallick, who completed his first year in Yale Divinity School, was selected to represent the Interseminary Movement at the World Conference of Christian Youth, held in Amsterdam July 24 to August 2.

1939

The following members of the Class of 1939 have secured the positions indicated at the time the Journal went to the printer:

Robert J. Byorin, social studies in the new Collegeville-Trappe Senior High School.

Margaret E. Claffin, physical education in the Collegeville-Trappe Senior High School.


Bernice K. Grubb, teaching scholarship in French, University of Rochester.

Raymond V. Gurzynski, physical education and assistant coach, Stewart Junior High School, Norristown, Pa.


Aaron H. Otto, salesman, American Agricultural Chemical Co., working out of Baltimore, Md.

Dorothy J. Peoples, assistant in German, Ursinus College.


Mary Helen Stoudt, English, Perry Township High School, Shoemakersville, Pa.

William L. Yeomans, graduate scholarship to Clark University.

Alfred C. Bartholomew, Paul P. Haas, and William E. Wimer will attend the Theological Seminary of the Reformed Church, Lancaster, Pa.

The following have been admitted to the Medical schools named: Jeffer son Medical College—Henry H. Alderfer, Franklin Earnest III, H. Eugene Hile, Jr., Howard B. Smith; Hahnamann Medical College—Morris B. Clark, Jr., Frank J. Frosch, Jr., Ivan W. Hess, E. Spencer Paisley; Boston University—Kenneth H. Seagrave; Woman's Medical College—Evelyn S. Cornish.
1939 VARSITY FOOTBALL SCHEDULE

Sept. 30 Lafayette at Easton

Oct. 7 Delaware at Collegeville (Old Timers' Day)

Oct. 14 P. M. C. at Collegeville

Oct. 21 Muhlenberg at Collegeville*

Oct. 28 Army at West Point

Nov. 5 Permanently Open Date

Nov. 11 Gettysburg at Gettysburg*

Nov. 18 Drexel at Philadelphia*

Nov. 30 F. & M. at Lancaster* (Thanksgiving Day)

*Conference Game.